
Minutes June 12, 2018

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PRINCE

Prince REGULAR MEETING

TOWNSHIP MINUTES
June 12, 2018

.cmp1y&mfu1, AahsialfrPnnce 6:45 p.m. — Council Chambers

AflFNnA

Present: Council: K. Lamming, I. Chambers, M. Matthews, E. Palumbo

Staff: B. Evans, E. Haley, J. Boissineau
—- r —

Public: Nathan Dod, BDO; Ratepayers — Jeff Shier, Rosita Zgraja
.

t

Media: M. Lahaye
Regrets: D. Amadio, Councillor

1. Call to Order 6:45 pm

2. Approve Agenda
Resolution: 2018-164
Moved by: Councillor Matthews Seconded by: Councillor Chambers

Be it resolved that this Council hereby approves the agenda of June 12, 2018 and any
addendum, as presented. (cd)

3. Disclosure of Interest

4. Minutes of Previous Meeting
a) Minutes regular meeting May 8, 2018
b) Minutes special meeting May 15, 2018

Resolution: 2018-1 65
Moved by: Councillor Chambers Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby adopts the minutes of the Regular meeting of May 8 and

Special meeting of May 15, as presented. (cd)

5. Questions and Information Arising out of Minutes and not Otherwise on Agenda

6. Petitions and Delegations
a) SDO — Nathan Dool —2017 Financial Statements

Resolution: 2018-1 66
Moved by: Councillor Chambers Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby accepts the 2017 Audited Financial Statements as
presented by BDO. (cd)

b) Jeff Shier — Naloxone protocol
Resolution: 2018-167
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby agrees to have the Prince Township Volunteer Fire Service

add Naloxone protocol to their OGL (Operating Guide Lines) (deferred)

7. Reports from Staff
a) Fire Chief Report

Resolution: 2018-168
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby accepts the Fire Chief’s report as information. (cd)

b) Road Superintendent Report
Resolution: 2018-169
Moved by: Councillor Chambers Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby accepts the Road Superintendent’s report as information.

(cd)
Report and request for 2 student if allowed

Resolution: 2018-
Moved by: Councillor Seconded by: Councillor
Resolution: 2018-170
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby approves the roads crew hiring a second student,

provided we are able to transfer the funding approved by Canada Summer Jobs. (cd)



Minutes June 12, 2018

c) Clerk-Treasurer’s Fin. Reports — Expense, Revenue and Balance sheet to March 2018
Resolution: 2018-1 71
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby accepts the Clerk’s May 2018 expenditure report in the
amount of $75,740.17, the May 2018 revenue report in the amount of $264,587.75 and the first
quarter unaudited balance sheet, as information. (od)

d) Meeting date for July 2018
Resolution: 2018-172
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Whereas, the Clerk is on vacation the week of the 2fld to the 6’ of July; and
Whereas, there will not be any time for the preparation of the agenda for July 10;
Now therefore be it resolved that this Council hereby agrees to waive the procedural by-law and
hold the July meeting on the 171h of the month. (cd)

e) Day Camp cancellation
Resolution: 2018-173
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Whereas Day Camp was advertised in the newsletter for two months; and
Whereas the there was a deadline for registrations to find out if running the Day Camp would
be feasible; and
Whereas there was only one response with a commitment of only 5 days throughout the
summer;
Now therefore be it resolved that this Council hereby cancels the Day Camp program. (cd)

8. Planning - none

9. By-Laws
a) By-law 2018-16 — Deputy Fire Chief — James Boissineau

Resolution: 201 8-174
Moved by: Councillor Chambers Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that the Council of the Township of Prince hereby adopts By-Law 2018-16, being
a by-law to appoint James Boissineau as Deputy Fire Chief for the Volunteer Fire Department. (cd)

b) By-law 2018-17 — Spectrum Group Memorandum of Agreement
Resolution: 2018-175
Moved by: Councillor Chambers Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that the Council of the Township of Prince hereby adopts By-Law 2018-17, being
a by-law authorizing the Mayor and Clerk to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement between
Spectrum Telecom Group and the Corporation of the Township of Prince regarding the construction
and development of a telecommunications tower site on private lands described as Prince Lake Road
(NE ¼ of Section 28) Township of Prince, District of Algoma, (Cd)

c) By-law 2018-18 — Service agreement with Health Unit — re: Naloxone
Resolution: 2018-1 76
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that the Council of the Township of Prince hereby adopts By-Law 2018-18, being
a by-law authorizing the Mayor and Clerk to enter into a Service Agreement between the Board of
Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit and the Corporation of the Township of Prince with
respect to Naloxone as proposed by the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. (cd)

d) By-law 2018-19 — Roads Labour — Jeremy Bishop
Resolution: 2018-177
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that the Council of the Township of Prince hereby adopts By-Law 2018-19, being
a by-law to appoint Jeremy Bishop as Roads Labourer for the Public Works department. (cd)

10. Motions and Notices of Motions
a) Councillor Matthews — FONOM report & Municipal Accountability Regime

Resolution: 2018-178
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby receives the FONOM 2018 report from Councillor
Matthews as information. (cd)



Minutes June 12, 2018

b) Mayor Lamming -4 x 6 water shack
no motion — discussion moved to closed session

c) Councillor Matthews — debrief on Community Transit grant declined.
Resolution: 2018-1 79
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby receives the report on the Community Transit Grant
(rejection) debriefing from Councillor Matthews, as information. (cd)

d) Councillor Matthews — discussion on Columbarium for cemetery.
Resolution: 2018-180
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Whereas there appears to be an increase in the number of cremations versus burials; and
Whereas Columbaria may be a preferred option for some individuals
Be it resolved that this Council hereby agrees to further investigate the estimated cost per
unit of a 100 unit structure to determine if a Columbarium at Hillside Cemetery is feasible. (cd)

e) Councillor Matthews — update on water system — meeting with Ontario Clean Water
Resolution: 2018-181
Moved by: Councillor Chambers Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby receives Councillor Matthews report regarding his
meeting with Ontario Clean Water, regarding the water system; and
Further be it resolved that this council agree to have the micron filter increased to the 20
gal/mm and the two gauges installed; and
Further be it resolved that this council agree to get detailed quotes for maintenance and
testing to the standards required by Reg. 170/03. (cd)

11. Correspondence (for your information)
a) Legalization of recreational cannabis use — affect on municipalities
b) Pedals for Possibilities — Thank you and photo of shirt with logo
c) ROMA speaks — mid-term meeting in Wawa
d) Municipal World article — Who Speaks for Council?
a) LAS (Local Authority Serv.) — CFTA U Notice of Participation (Can.Free Trade Agreement)

Resolution: 2018-182
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby accepts correspondence items 11 a through e as
information. (Cd)

12. Minutes of Boards and Committees
a) Prince Township Public Library Board of Trustees-Minutes — May 1, 2018

Resolution: 2018-183
Moved by: Councillor Chambers Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby approves the minutes of the Prince Township Public
Library Board for May 112018! as presented. (cd)

b) Conservation Authority Office-Minutes April 25, 2018
c) DSSAB Minutes—April 19! 2018

Resolution: 2018-184
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby accepts the minutes of the Conservation Authority
of April25 and the DSSAB of April 19! 2018 as information. (cd)

13. New Business (will include motions for consideration)
a) AMO — Protecting Double Hatter Fire Fighters

Resolution: 2018-185
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby supports the rights of double hatter Firefighters to
volunteer their time to protect their communities without the threat of being charged and fined.
(cd)

b) City of Quinte West — Cannabis grace period request to allow for training of law enforcement.
No motion signed

14. Closed Session
a) May minutes
b) labour relations or employee negotiation — roads labourer



Minutes June 12, 2018

c) labour relations or employee negotiation — staff vacation and overtime
Resolution: 2018-186
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that the Council of the Township of Prince hereby go into closed session at 8:10
pm to discuss matters relating to:
a) Discussion of the minutes of May 8, 2018
b) labour relations or employee negotiation — road labourer
c) labour relations or employee negotiation — staff overtime and vacation
Further be it resolved that should the closed session be adjourned, Council may reconvene in
closed session to continue to discuss the same matter without the need for a further authorizing
resolution. (cd)

Resolution: 2018-187
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Matthews

Be it resolved that this Council hereby adopts the closed meeting minutes of May 8, 2016,
as presented. (cd)

15. Confirmatory By-law
a) By-law 2018-20 Confirmatory May 15 & June 12, 2018

Resolution: 2018-188
Moved by: Councillor Matthews Seconded by: Councillor Chambers

Be it resolved that this Council hereby adopts By-Law 2018-20, being a by-law to adopt,
ratify, and confirm the action of Council for May 15 and June 12th, 2018. (Cd)

16. Adjournment
Resolution: 2018-189
Moved by: Councillor Palumbo Seconded by: Councillor Chambers

Beit resolved that this Council hereby adjourns at 8:43 p.m. until July 17, 2018 or the call of the
chair. (cd)

Mayor, K. Lamming Clerk, P. Greco



Minutes June 25th, 2018

rn CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PRINCE

1111CC SPECIAL MEETING

TOWNSHIP MINUTES
June 25, 2018

— .cunplj’neanufulA•atuiallypr,irce 5:30 p.m. — Council Chambers

Present: Council: D. Amadio, I. Chambers, M. Matthews
Staff: P. Greco

1. Call to order— 5:30 p.m.

2. Approval of Agenda
Resolution: 2018-190
Moved by: Councillor Chambers Seconded by: Councillor Amadio

Be it resolved that this Council hereby approves the agenda of June 25, 2018, as presented. (od)

3. Declaration of Conflict of Interest

4. Tender review
Resolution: 2018-1 91
Moved by: Councillor Chambers Seconded by: Councillor Amadio

Belt resolved that this Council hereby agrees to engage the services of Trimount Construction
for the rehabilitation of the Walls Road culver! in the amount of $235,680.08 (including HST). (Cd)

Resolution: 2018-1 92
Moved by: Councillor Amadio Seconded by: Councillor Chambers
Whereas, there is a limited time frame for work on the repair to the Walls Road culvert; and

Whereas, the next regular meeting of Council is not until July 17, 2018; and

Whereas, it is necessary to pass a by-law to enter into a contract;

Now therefore be it resolved that this Council hereby agrees to waive the procedural by-law
2014-20 to authorize the acting mayor and clerk to enter into a contract. (cd)

5. By-law 2018-21 — Award Contract
Resolution: 2018-193
Moved by: Councillor Chambers Seconded by: Councillor Amadio

Be it resolved that this Council hereby adopts by-law 2018-21, being a by-law authorizing the
acting mayor and the clerk to enter into an agreement between the Township of Prince and Trimount
Construction for the rehabilitation of the culvert on Walls Road. (cd)

6. Adjournment
Resolution: 2018-194
Moved by: Councillor Chambers Seconded by: Councillor Amadio

Be it resolved that this Council hereby adjourns at 5:35 p.m. until July 17, 2018 or the call of the chair.
(cd)

Mayor, K. Lamming Clerk, P. Greco



______

Peggy Greco <pgreco@twp.prince.on.ca>

.Sn.pt’ B. autyki.

Council Meeting Tuesday July 17, 2018 AGENDI

Rose Anderson <rose_ander@hotmail.com>
;n -

(0 aL.__ -

11 July 2018 at 15:37
To: “pgreco@twp.phnce.on.ca” <pgreco@twp.prince.on.ca> Dete: —

Hello Peggy,

I am writing to request an opportunity to speak briefly at the next council meeting.

My concerns revolve around the usage of Township facilities.

I believe it is imperative for the Township to develop a coherent policy for use of its facilities, to ensure that

usage both complies with relevant legislation and ensures fairness for Prince taxpayers.

I would like to re-iterate my previous offer to work on an ad-hoc committee to draft a policy for approval by
Council.

For the moment, I will need a few minutes to outline what I view as important considerations.

Thank you,

Rose Zgraja



AGENDA

OGL Naloxone

______________

Purpose: Prince Firefighters and f:jrst Responders to administer Naloxone in the case of
suspected or confirmed opioid c .‘erdose, in order to prevent death or injury.

Practice level or competency: F rince Firefighters and First Responders who have completed
training and education on assesing for clinical signs and symptoms of opiate overdose, and
indication for Naloxone adminisi ration.

Four doses of Naloxone will be ci ried on the Rescue; Two in the oxygen bag and two in reserve
on the truck. Two more will be c3-ried on the pumper.

*Upon arrival to a scene, the folowing actions need to occur:

Determine scene safety

-Don medical gloves and :i’jditional personal protection equipment as appropriate
mask and eye wear).

Assessment

-Perform patient care as trained EFR

-Talk to any bystanders a relatives that may have information on the patient.

-Determine if the patient i; a known drug user or has recently been exposed to opioids.
Assess current drug use ( wescription, over-the-counter, & illicit).

-Stimulate the patient b talking loudly to them, telling them to wake up/breathe,
sternal rub if no responsE to voice.

-Perform your LOC’S, ABC ; to determine the state of the patient. Pay particular
attention to the signs of cpioid overdose (shallow breathing, pinpoint pupils, blue tinge
on lips, grey pasty skin to’ ic).

-Check for a pulse, if not :alpable, commence CPR. If patient has a pulse but is not
breathing adequately, pnvide airway assistance.

-Start supporting the pati’ nts breathing by protecting the airway and using the BVM
with oxygen support. Inse 1: an oral airway if needed.

-If there is no improvemeti: in the patients breathing after a few minutes then
administer one dose (O.4rig) of Naloxone into the nostril as trained. Call this activity into
dispatch. (“Administering lie first dose of Naloxone”) — This will time stamp our activity.

-Monitor response and cc’itinue to support breathing with the BVM and oxygen.



-After 2 to 3 minutes if tie patient has not become alert and their breathing is still
compromised administei another dose of naloxone, into the other nostril. Call this
activity into dispatch as ‘;ell.

Monitor response and continue co support breathing with the BVM and oxygen as needed.

Continue this pattern until a po live response has occurred or EMS arrival at the patient.

Continue to provide supportive iire. Speak calmly and reassuringly to the patient, explaining
what has happened.

Fully document scene by compluting necessary reports.



Agenda

____

Item: 7b)Prince Date: July 17, 2018
TOWNSHIP

‘PrinceSirnplvBeauflful, Naturallj
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT

Date: July11, 2018 Date Presented: July 17, 2018
Prepared By: Brian Evans Department: Roads
Subject: Roads report

Gagnon road has damage caused by the machines that are installing the natural gas lines.
(email to Union Gas rep to have something in writing regarding their commitment to fixing
any damage)

All other surface treated roads have some potholes except Douglas Drive.

Prince Lake Road was graded today (July 10th),

Taillifer Road has not been graded yet this season but is in good condition and will be
graded in the near future.

Paving has been completed on Prince Lake road hill and work is being done on the road
shoulders.

Walls Road culvert work should begin the first week of August.

Patching will be done as time permits, starting with the roads with the most traffic



______

AGENDA

____

(WV® Date:
WASTE MANAGEMENT

CORP OF TOWN OF PRINCE
3042 SECOND LINE W RR 6
SAULT STE MARIE, ON
P6A 6K4
123-120

Dear CUSTOMER,

At Waste Management, we truly value our customers and appreciate their loyalty. You
have been an important customer for years now and we look forward to continuing to
provide you with the highest level of waste and environmental services available. Thank
you for helping us do our part by helping businesses like yours transform what they used
to send to landfill into valuable resources.

We want your experience with Waste Management to be exceptional. Accompanying
this letter is an updated service agreement. Please review, sign and return it to me using
the provided paid postage before August 1st, 2018 for an account credit worth one free
month of servicel

We truly appreciate your business. If you have any questions, feel free to reach out to
me at any time kpyke@wm.com.

Sincerely,

Kristin Pyke
Account Specialist
Waste Management of Canada Corp.

RECEIVED JUN 29 zoi8

From everyday collection to environmental Protection. Think Grnn.e Think Waste Management.



AGENDA

c

Prince Township Revenue Report

_____ _______

June 2018

Description Amount

Dog Tags S 82.50

Donation - Friends of Library 5000

Fire Permits 330.00

Hall Rental 131.00

Main Street Revitalization 38,539.02

Misc. WI donation 40.00

Misc. Union Gas donation 200.00

Misc. Pavilion - Grand Opening 5358.20

Newsletter Advertising 150.00

Nomination Fee 100.00

Opening & Closing 1,525.00

Property Sale 18755.03

Stewardship Ontario 3,633.60

Tax Certificate 120.00

Subtotal $ 69,014.35

Property taxes 34,913.22

Total $ 103,927.57



AGENDA

IDe
Prince Township Expenditure Report

Jun-IS

— Chq # Date Name Description Amount —

2803- 6/04/18 Payroll Jun-18 $ 22668.02

7883 6/06/18 City of Sault Ste Marie Ashphalt, tipping fees 928.00

7884 6/06/18 Spectrum 2000 radio repair 25.43

7885 6/06/18 WirelessCom Ca Inc. onsite service, domain name registration 401.43

7886 6/06/18 Airways General Store fuel for vehicles and tools 411.54

7887 6/06/18 Trio spark plugs, machine oil, battery 12.24

7888 6/06/18 Municipal Waste & Recycling garbage collection 2,133.65

7889 6/06/18 Ken Lamming supplies for grand opening 50.25

7890 6/06/18 GFL Environmental Inc. recycling 3,743.34

7891 6/06/18 Reliable Maintenance Products supplies marina washroom 197.31

7892 6106/18 Inter-Ontario Equipment Rental 6 loads of slag 1,634.15

7893 6/06/18 Bradley Lambert bouncy house for grand opening 500.00

7894 6/06/18 Lina Sarno face painting for grand opening 200.00

7895 6/06/18 Tombari Electric heater receptacles for pavilion 339.00

7896 6/06/18 Waste Management of Canada cardboard collection 579.34

7897 6/06/18 Johnson’s Fire Services Inc. recertification fire truck 395.50

7898 6/06/18 Lorraine Mousseau float cash for pavilion grand opening 500.00

7899 6/12/18 City of Sault Ste Marie 911, tipping fees and policing 50,656.54

7900 6/12/18 Public Utilities Corporation hydro 822.30

7901 6/12/18 WirelessCom Ca Inc. internet 172.89

7902 6/12/18 Ken Lamming supplies, food and wine for grand opening 994.21

7903 6/12/18 Dumanski Office Interiors digital signs for grand opening 180.89

7904 6/12/18 Frankie’s Automotive & Body Shop dodge and trailer annual inpection 375.51

7905 6/12/18 Cuets Financial intern ad and geeksquad contract 107.34

7906 6/12/18 Reliable Maintenance Products cleaning supplies - community centre 149.62

7907 6/12/18 Francotyp-Postalia Canada Inc. postage machine lease - May to Sept 169.33

7908 6/12/18 Inter-Ontario Equipment Rental Slag for Jackson Island Road 1,130.00

7909 6/12/18 Fire Marshal’s Public Fire Safety 2018 home show kit 265.53

7910 6/19/18 Archibald Bros.
grading, spreading and hauling gravel, 6,577.73
ditching, marina and oavilion work

7911 6/I 9/18 Peggy Greco mileage meals - amcto 679.40

7912 6/19/18 Michael Muscat chainsaw course 300.00

7913 6/19/18 Stephen Turco, RPP
planning 3 properties and proposed 560.00
veteran facility

7917 6/19/18 Airways General Store mosquito coils 10.17

7918 6/19/18 Airways General Store fuel for vehicles and tools 480.61

7919 6/19/18 Petty Cash- Peggy monitorfor museum -water, broom 175.15

7920 6/19/18 Algoma District School Board quarterly levy 60,210.00

7921 6/19/18 DSSAB quarterly levy 97,181.75

7922 6/19/18 Ken Lamming plastic cups for grand opening 32.48

7923 6/19/18 TamarahTyczinski newsletter delivery 100.00

7924 6/19/18 Corix Water Products LP safety vests 97.46

7925 6/19/18 Huron Superior Catholic SB quarterly levy 15,100.00

7926 6/19/18 LeCounseil Scolaire Catholique quarterly levy 1 800.00

7927 6/19/18 Conseil Scolaire Grand Nord quarterly levy 600.00

7930 6/27/18 Bell Canada phone bill 604.88

7931 6/27/18 Void



Prince Township Expenditure Report
Jun-18 continued

— Chq # Date Name Description Amount —

7932 6/27/18 Lyons TIM-SR Mart 2 tool boxes and gloves for roads 46.30

7933 6/27/18 Airways General Store fuel for vehicles and tools 352.50

7934 6/27118 Trio generator battery 187.13

7935 6/27/18 Steve Rouble mark-outs for burials (4) 203.35

7936 6/27/18 Ed Haley Fire prevention - meals for open house 118.71

7937 6/27/18 Prouse Motors side mirror for chevy 164.36

7938 6/27/18 CS HOME INSTALLATIONS siding on pavilion 21,853.07

7939 6/27/18 Northern Superior bar tab - festival and events pavilion 1,307.25

7940 6/27/18 Void -

7944 6/28/18 City of Sault Ste Marie tipping fees 448.00

7945 6/28/18 Public Utilities Corporation streetlighting 832.14

7946 6/28/18 Steve Rouble mark-outs for burial 50.85

7947 6/28/18 BDO Canada LLP audit fees for 2017 financials 14,972.50

7948 6/28/18 Orkin Canada Corporation pest control 6780

7949 6/28/18 Jeremy K Bishop Mileage for chainsaw training. 75.46

S 314,932.41



AGND.

Prince
TOWNSHIP

Simply Beauqful, Naturally Prince

LAW F IRM LLP

Code of Conduct

Code of Conduct

Municipality of Prince

Ven,o,z I June 29. 2018



Important Disclaimer: this protocol complies with the relevant provisions of the Municipal Act,

2001, SO 2001, c 25 (the “Act”). lfyou have any questions or concerns about this protocol or

how to implement it, please contact Wishart Law Firm LLP. \Vishart Law Firm LLP is not

responsible for the results of any edit to this protocol other than as expressly authorized or

directed by Wishart Law Firm LLP.

© 2018, Wishart Law Firm LLP

All rights reserved. No part of this work may be reproduced or copied in any form or by an)’

means (graphic, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying, recording, taping or

information and retrieval systems) without the written ier ission of \Visliart Law Firm LLP.

A licence is, however, given by \Vishart Law Firm LLP to any Mu ii icipali ty that has purchased

a copy of this work to print, copy, save, or post on its official website for its own use only and

such Municipality may not repurpose or resell the work in any way.

Code oluonduct
I’erc FUJI I .1117w 29. 2018



Contents
1. Principles Upon Which This Code is Based 1

2. Application of this Code 2

3. Definitions 2

4. Compliance with Declaration of Office 4

5. Adherence to Council Policies and Procedures 4

6. Conduct at Meetings 4

7. Conduct Respecting Others S

8. Conduct Respecting Staff and Officers S

9. Gifts,Benefits and Hospitality 6

10. Confidential Information 9

11. Use of Municipal Property, Services and Other Resources 10

12. Conduct of Election Campaign 10

13. No Improper Use of Influence 10

14. Non-Compliance with this Code of Conduct — Sanctions 11

15. No Reprisal or Obstruction in the Application or Enforcement of this Code 12

16. Statutes and Policies Regulating the Conduct of Members 12

17. Complaints Alleging Violation of This Code 13

Code of Conduct
i’ers,o;i 1 June 29, 2018



1

1. Principles Upon Which This Code is Based

1. 1 A municipality is a responsible level of government. Improving the quality of municipal

governance and administration can best be achieved by encouraging high standards of

conduct on the part of all Members. In particular, the public is entitled to expect the

highest standards of conduct from the Members of its local government. In turn,

adherence to these standards will protect and promote the Mimicipality’s reputation and

integrity.

1.2 Key statements of principle ti iat underline this Code of Conduct are as follows:

a) Council, and its Members are the leaders of the Municipality both inside and

outside its geographic boundaries. Especially in an age of social media and

electronic messaging, strong positive management of tile reputation of the

Municipality is needed. The statements and behavior of Council afThct the

Municipality’s reputation as a place to live and do business. Conflict and

inappropriate conduct among Members, statE officers and members of tile public,

adversely affects the Municipality’s reputation and is to be avoided. Put

difIbrently, Council has a strong role to protect and promote the Municipality

and its reputation as an excellent place to live, work and do business;

b) Members must serve and he seen to serve their constituents in a conscientious

and dii igen t manner;

c) Members must be conniii tted to perfornung their functions with integrity,

avoiding the improper use of the influence of’ their office, and conflicts of interest,

both real and perceived;

d) Members are expected to conduct themselves and perform their duties in office

and arrange their private affhirs in a manner that promotes public confidence and

will bear close public scru tiny;

e) Members must recognize and act upon the principle that democracy is best

achieved when the operation of’ governiiien t is as transparent and accou n table to

the Public as possible;

I) Members shall seek to serve the public interest by upholding both tile letter and

spirit of the laws of Parliament and the Ontario Legislature, as well as the laws

and policies adopted by the Municipal Council;

Code of Conduct

Version 1 June 29, 2018



2

g) Members must not use the status of their position to inappropriately influence

the decision of another individual or body. For example, to obtain a personal

advantage fbr the Member, the Members parents, children, spouse, staff, friends,

associates, business or otherwise; or to disadvantage another party.

h) Members shall be respectful of the role of staff to provide advice with political

neutrality and objectivity and without undue influence from a Member or

Members.

2. Application of this Code

2.1 This Code of Conduct applies to every Member.

3. Definitions

3.1 In this Code of Conduct:

a) “Benefit” means preferential treatment, privileged access, favours or other

advantage including, but not necessarily limited to, invitations to sporting,

cultural or social events, access to discounts and loyalty programs and promises

of a new employnient.

b) ‘Ceremonial Gill’ means official gifts provided as part of the culture or practices

of communities or government within Canada or internationally, wh ichi although

they may be given to a Member, are accepted by a Member on belialfof a

municipality and become the property’ of a municipality.

c) “Child” means a child horn within or outside marriage and includes any adopted

child, step child, foster child and a person whom a Member has a demonstrated a

settled intention to treat as a child of his or her family;

d) Confidential Information” means any information in the possession of, or

received in confidence by, the Municipality that the Municipality is prohibited

from disclosing, or has decided to reftise to disclose, under the Municipal Freedom

oflnfbrmatwn and Protection ofPrIva’ Act or any other law. Confidential

Information also includes information of a corporate, commercial, scientific or

technical nature received in confidence from third parties”, personal information;
information that is subject to solicitor—client privilege; information that concerns

any confidential matters pertaining to personnel, labour relations, litigation,

property acquisition, the security of die property of the Municipality or a Local

Code of Conduct
1’?rso)i 1 June 29, 2018



3

Board; and aiiy other information lawfully determined by the Council to be

confidential, or required to remain or he kept confidential by legislation or order.

e) ‘Council” means the Council of the Township of Prince.

“Gift” means free or discounted items or services and any item or service that

would, viewed in light of all the circumstances, be regarded as a gift by a

reasonable Person not including Ceremonial Gifts.

g) ‘Hospitality” means the friendly reception and entertainment of guests, which

may range fi’om light refreshments at a meeting to expensive restaurant meals

and sponsored travel or accoinniodation.

ii) “1 n—camera meeting” means a meeting, or part of a meeting, closed to the public

pursuant to section 239 of the Munropal Act, 2001,

i) “Information” includes a record or document written or otherwise;

j) “Integrity Commissioner” means the Person appointed by by—law in accordance

with section 223,3 of’ the Municzjml Act, 2001 and who is responsible for

performing, in an independent manner, the functions assigned by the

Municipality with respect to the application of’the Code of’Condtict for

Members.

k) “Local Board” means, for the purpose of’tliis Code of Conduct. a local board

other than:

i. A society as defined in subsection 2(1) of the Child, Thu/h and Family

Services Act, 2017;

ii. A board ofhiealthi as defined in subsection i(i) of tIle Heal/li Protection and

Promotion Act;

iii. A committee of management established under the Long—Tmii Care

Homes Act, 2007;

iv. A police services board established under the Pu/ire &nire.c Art and/or

the I’olice Services Ac4 2018;

v, A board as defined in section 1 of the Public Libraries :Ict; and

vi. A corporation established in accordance with section 203 of the Municipal

Act, 2001;

Code of Conduct
I rrsio?i I June 29. 2018



4

I) Member” means a member of Council, which shall include the Mayor/Reeve,

nienibers of Committees and members of’ Local Boards, unless, with respect to

members of Local Boards, the context requires otherwise, and shall not include

staff or ratepayers.

iii) ‘Officer(s)’ means a person who holds a position of responsibility with definite

rights and duties prescribed by statute or by—law.

n) “Parent” means a person who has demonstrated a settled intention to treat a

child as a part of his or her family whether or not that per.son is the natural

parent of the child;

o) “Person” includes a corporation, partnership, association and any other entity, as

the context allows; and

p) “Spouse’’ means an individual to whom an md ividual is married or with whom an

individual is living in a conjugal relationship outside marriage.

q) “Transparency” means that the municipality actively encourages and fhstcrs

stakeholder participation and openness in its decision—making processes. It

means that the municipality’s decision—making process is open and clear to the

public.

4. Compliance with Declaration of Office

1. I Every Member shall act in accordance with his or her declaration of office sworn

pursuant to section 262 of the Municipal Act, 2001. A copy of the Declaration of 0111cc

is attached as Schedule “A”.

5. Adherence to Council Policies and Procedures

5.1 Every Member shall observe and comply with every provision of this Code of Conduct,

as well us a]] other policies and procedures adopted or established by Council.

6. Conduct at Meetings

6,1 Every Member shall conduct hmniselfor herself properly and in a civil and respectful

manner at meetings, and in accordance with the provisions of the Procedural By—law,

this Code of Conduct, and other applicable law,

Code of Conduct
I ‘,rsion I June 29, 2018



5

6.1 Members ‘ill respect the decision—making process. Members vill attempt to accurately

and adequately communicate the attitudes and decisions of Council, even if they

disagree with a majority decision of Council.

6.3 Members shall strive to attend all Council Meetings. Any Member who is unable to

attend a Cmi ncil Meeting shall advise the clerk as soon as is reasonably possible of the

reason for their absence.

7. Conduct Respecting Others

7.1 Every Member has the duty and responsibility to treat members of the public, one

another and staff appropriately and without abuse, bullying or intimidation, and to

ensure that the municipal work environment is free from discrimination and

harassment. The Member shall be familiar with, and comply with, the Municipality’s

\Vorkplace Anti—Violence, Harassment and Sexual Harassment Policy.

7.2 A Member shall not use indecent, abusive or insulting words, tone or expressions

toward any other Member, any municipal stall or any nieniber of die public.

7.3 A Member shall not speak in a manner that is discriminatory to any individual, based on

any protected grounds. Protected grounds include: citizenship, race, place of origin,

ethnic origin, colour, ancestry, disability, age, creed, sex/pregnancy, fhmily status,

marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity, and gender expression 1

8. Conduct Respecting Staff and Officers

8.1 Under the direction of the senior administrative stalE and in accordance with the

decisions of Council, staff and Officers are required to serve the municipal corporation

as a whole. Every Member shall be respectful of the role of staff and Officers to provide

advice based on political neutrality and objectivity and without undue influence from

any Member or group of’ Members. Accordingly, no Member shall maliciously or Ihlsely

injure or impugnthe professional or ethical reputation of any staff person or Officer.

8.2 Members shall acknowledge and respect the fact that staff carry omit directions of

Council, through senior stalL including but not limited to the treasurer, clerk, director

of public works, anti administer the policies of the Municipality. No Member shall

perform, direct or attempt to undermine the duties of any staffperson or Officer except

in accordance with the Municipality’s procedural by—law.

See Human Rights Code, R.S.0. 1990, c.H.19

Code of Conduct
i’ercton 1 June 29, 2018



6

si Every Member shall show respect for staff and Officers, and for their professional

capacities and responsibilities.

8.-i No Member shall direct, instructor or compel any staff member or Officer to engage in

partisan political activities or subject any stall’ member or Officer to threat or

discrimination for refusing to engage in any such activity.

8.5 No Member shafl use or attempt to further his or her authority or influence by
intimidating, threatening, coercing, commanding or improperly influencing any stall’

person or Officer or interfering with that person’s duties, including the duty to disclose

improper activity.

9. Gifts,Benefits and Hospitality

9.1 For the purposes of this Code, Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality provided, with a

Members knowledge, to that Member’s spouse, child or parent, or to his or her staft

that is connected directly or indirectly to the performance of the Member’s duties, are

deemed Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality provided to that Member.

9.2 No Member shall accept Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality connected directly or indirectly

with the performance of his or her duties, unless permitted under one or more of the

exceptions listed below:

9.3 Each of the following is recognized as an exception:

a) compensation a uthorized by law;

b) Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality of the kind that normally accompanies the

responsibilities of office and is received as an incident of protocol or social

obligation;

c) a political contribution otherwise authorized and reported as required by law, in

the case ofa Member running for office;

d) services provided without compensation by a Person volunteering their time in a

function that would not normally be provided for compensation;

e) a suitable memento of a function hionouring the Member;

(‘ode of Conduct
I’in I how 29, 2018



7

f) food, lodging, transportation or entertainnieiit lawhully provided by any

Provincial, regional or local government or board or political subdivisions of any

of theni, by the Federal government, a fhreign government, or by those

organizing a conference, seminar or event where the Member is speaking or

attending in an official capacity;

g) food and beverage consumed at a banquet reception or similar event, ifi

i. attendance by the Member is fñr a legitimate municipal purpose;

ii. the Person extending the invitation, or a representative of the

organization holding the event, i. in attendance; and

iii. the value is reasonable;

Ii) cornitiunications to the oflice of a Member, even if such communication would. in

the ordinary course, require a subscription; and

i) a sponsorship or donation for a coninitunity event organized or run by a Member.

or a third party on behalf of a Member, subject to the limitations set out in any

applicable in un icipal policy.

9.-f Except for exception 93 (c) (political contributions allowable by law), these exceptions

do not apply where Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality are provided by a lobbyist or a

lobbyists client or employer. In this provision, a lobbyist is an individual, organization

or business who or that:

a) lobbies, or causes the lobbying of any public office holder of the Municipality,

the municipal council or corporation or a Local I3oard;

b) the Nieritber knows is attempting or intending to lobby the Member or any of

the public, Persons or bodies listed in paragraph (a); or

c) is maintaining an active lobbyist registration with the Municipality, vhietlier or

not with respect to any specific or current subject matter.

9.i The exceptions iii section 9.3 do not apply to a gift front an anonymous sender. No

Member shall accept a gift front an anonymous sender. Where a Member receives a gift

front an anonymous sender, the Member will turn the gift in to the Clerk who will

donate the gift to a charity/organization on the Municipality’s approved donation list.

Code of Conduct
I’ersio,z 1 June 29, 2018



8

9.G In the case of any of the recognized exceptions in sections 9.3 (b), (e), (fl (h) and (i), to

enhance transparency and accountability with respect to Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality,

if the value of the Gift, Benefit or Hospitality S300, or if the total value of Gifts, Benefits

and Hospitality received from any one source during the course ofa calendar year

exceeds $300, the Member shall file, within 30 days of receipt, or of reaching the annual

limit, a disclosure statement with the Municipality or with its Integrity Commissioner.

9.7 The disclosure statement must set out:

a) the nature of all Gifts, Benefits, and Hospitality;

h) its source and date of receipt;

c) the circumstances tinder which it was given and received;

d) its estimated value or, ifdeterniinable, its exact value;

e) vhat the recipient intends to do with any gift; and

f) whether any gift will at sonic point he provided to the Municipality.

9.8 Every disclosure statement filed under this Code shall be made a public record

and posted in a place available for public review.

9.9 Upon receiving a disclosure statement, the Municipality or the Integrity Commissioner,

as the case may be, shall examine, or in the case of the Municipality appoint a Person to

examine, the disclosure statement to ascertain whether the receipt of any Gifts, Benefits,

or Hospitality, in his or her opinion, acting reasonably, contravenes this Code. Making

such determination shall including providing the Member an opportunity to provide an

explanation as to why receipt of an’ Gift, Benefit or 1-lospitality at issue does not

contravene this Code.

9.10 Should a determination be made that receipt of any Gift, Benefit or Hospitality

contravenes this Code, the Member shall be directed to promptly return, dispose of; or

reimburse the person giving the Gift, Benefit or Hospitality, for the full value thereof; as

applicable or remit the value of any gift or benefit already consumed to the

Municipality.

Code of Conduct
I eitc,o;z 1 June 29. 2018



9

10. Confidential Information

10.1 No Member shall disclose, release, sell or publish by any means directly or

indirectly, to any person or to the public, any Confidential Information acquired

by virtue of his or her office, iii any form including, but not limited to, written notes

reports, oral and video recording, pictures, electronic correspondence, and any form of

social media except when required or authorized by Council or otherwise by law to do

so.

10.2 No Member shall use Confidential Information for personal or private gain or benefit.

or for the personal or private gain or benefit or to disadvantage of any other person or

body.

10.3 Unless required by law, no Member shall disclose the substance of deliberations of

meetings held in camera and that are authorized to held in camera under the Ml,nic,4a1

dcl, 2001 or any other legislation unless or until Council discloses such information at a

meeting that is open to the public or otherwise releases such information to the public.

10.1 Without limiting the generality of the foregoing. no Meniher shall, without lawful

authority, disclose or make personal use of’ any of the following types of Confidential

Information:

a) Information concerning litigation, negotiation or personnel or labour matters;

b) Information, the publication of which may infringe on the rights of any iwion
(e.g. source of a complaint where the identity of a complainant is given in

confidence);

c) Price schedules in any contract, tender or proposal document while such remains

Confidential Information;

cI) Information deemed to be “personal information” under the Mumnpal breedoni of’

In/h r,natwn and Protection ofPrivacy Act; and

e) Any other information or statistical data required by law not to be released.

10.5 No Member shall obtain access, or attempt to gain access, to Confidential Information

in the custody of the Municipality, Local Board or Committee except to the extent that

such access is necessary for the performance of his or her duties and such access is not

prohibited by Council or otherwise by law.

(‘ode of Conduct
i’ercioii I lunt’ 29. 2018



10

11. Use of Municipal Property, Services and Other Resources

11.1 No Member shall use, or permit the use of: municipal equipment, land, facilities,

supplies, services, staff or other resource, including any’ municipally—owned information,

website, or funds allocated for Member expenses. fbr ally purpose or activity other than

the lawfiul business of the municipal corporation. No Member shall seek or acquire any

personal financial gal n (wont use it for the detriment) from the use or sale of

Confidential Information, or of any municipally—owned intellectual property’ including

any invention, creative writing or drawing, computer program, technical innovation, or

any other information or item capable of being patented or copyrighted, for which

property remains exclusively that of tile Municipality.

12. Conduct of Election Campaign

12.1 Every Member shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Municipal Elections

Jet, 1996 and with tile Municipality’s municipal or board resources rules and procedures

established pursuant to section 88.18 of the ziunieipal Electrons Act, 1996.

12.2 No Member shall use Confidential Information, facilities, equ pment, supplies, services,

or other resources of the Municipality, including any Member newsletter or website

linked through tile Municipality’s website, for any election campaign or campaign—

related activity. No Member shall undertake campaign—related activities on municipal

property during regular working hours unless authorized by the Municipality.

12.3 No Member shall use the services of any person for election—related purposes during

hours in which that person receives any’ compensation from tile Municipality.

13. No Improper Use of Influence

13.1 No Member shall use tile influence of his or her office for any purpose other than for the

lawful exercise ofilis or 11cr official duties and for municipal purposes.

13.2 No Member shall use his or her office or position to influence or attempt to influence

the decision of any other person, for the Member’s private advantage, the private

advantage of the Member’s parent, child, spouse, staff member, friend or associate,

business or otherwise or the disadvantage of others. No Member shall attempt to secure

prefti-entiai treatment beyond activities in which Members normalb’ engage on behalf

of their constituents as part of their official duties. No Member shall hold out tile

Code of Conduct

I’erSIOn 1 luRe 29, 2018



11

prospect or promise oftiinire advantage through the Members supposed influence

within Council in return far any action or inaction.

13.3 For the purposes of tins provision private advantage” does not include a matter:

a) That is an interest in common with electors generally as defined in the Municipal

Con/lies of Interest rid;

b) that affects a Member, his or her parents/children or spouse, staff, friends or

associates, husiness or otherwise, as one of a broad class of persons; or

c) that concerns the renmneration or benefits of a Member.

13.1 This provision does riot prevent a Meriiber from requesting that Council grant a lawful

exemption from a policy.

14. Non-Compliance with this Code of Conduct — Sanctions

11.1 A Member found by the Integrity Commissioner to have contravened any provision of

this Code, may be subject to one or more of the flilloving consequences imposed by

Council as referred to in the following:

a) a reprimand;

5) suspension of the reitiuneration paid to the Member in respect ouliis or her

services as a Member of the Council or Local Board, for a period of up to 90

days;

c) Other penalties, including but not necessarily limited to:

i. Removal from membership of a Committee or Local Board;

ii. Removal as Chair of a Committee or Local Board;

iii. Require repayment or reinibursenient of moneys received;

iv. Return of property or reimbursement of its value;

v. A request for an apology;

vi. Revocation of travel or another budget;

vii. Request for resignation; and

(‘ode of Conduct
Venioi, 1 June 29, 2018



12

viii. lrespass order restricting access except fhr Council Meetings;

15. No Reprisal or Obstruction in the Application or
Enforcement of this Code

15.1 Every Member must respect the integrity of the Code of Conduct and inquiries and

investigations conducted under it and shall co—operate in every way possible in securing

compliance with its application and endorsement. Any reprisal or threat of reprisal
against a complainant or any other person for providing relevant information to the
Integrity Commissioner or any other person is prohibited. It is also a violation of the

Code of Conduct to obstruct the Integrity Commissioner or any other municipal official

involved in applying or furthering the objectives or requirements of this Code, in the

carrying out of such responsibilities or pursuing any such objective.

15.2 Every Member shall cooperate with Integrity Commission if die Integrity
Commissioner conducts an inquiry concerning an alleged contravention of this Code.

16. Statutes and Policies Regulating the Conduct of Members

16.1 In addition to this Code of Conduct, the following Ontario legislation also governs the

conduct of Members:

a) the iwunwipal Act, 2001 as amended;

b) the Municipal Conflict ofInterest Ad;

c) the Municipal Elections Act, 2996;

d) the ‘vI,uj,cibal Freedom ofhjbrmatrnn and Protection oJPrivan’ Act,

e) the Ontario Hinnan Rights Code; and,

Q the Occupational health and Safety zict.

16.2 The following policies govern the conduct of Members

cedural By-Law
[Accountability and Transparency

Code of Conduct
Version 1 June 29, 2018

January 9, 1996 I 96-2

j November 27, 2007 2002-1



13

16.3 The Criminal Code also governs the conduct of Members.

16.1 A Member may become disqualified and lose his or her seat by operation of law,

including being convicted of an offence under the Criminal Code or being found to have

failed to comply with the Municipal Conflict o/ Interest Act, whether or not the conduct in

question involves contravention of this Code of Conduct. In the case of any

inconsistency between this Code and a Federal or Provincial statute or regulation the

statute or regulation shall prevail. Should any provision of the Code become or be

determined to be invalid, illegal or unenfbrceable it shall be considered separate and

several from the agreement and the remaining provisions shall remain in force.

17. Complaints Alleging Violation of This Code

17.1 \Vhiere a Member, a municipal employee, Officer, or a member of the public has

reasonable grounds to believe that a Member(s)hius contravened this Code, a complaint

may be submitted to the Clerks Department in the prescribed form which will be

forwarded to the Municipality’s Integrity Commissioner who will process it in

accordance with the Integrity Commissioner Protocol attached hereto as Schedule “B.

The Complaint may also be submitted directly to the Integrity Commissioner in the

event that such office is readily accessible.

17.3 Where a Member is found not to have contravened this Code, the Municipality is

authorized to protect that Member against costs or expenses incurred by the Member as

a result of the complaint proceedings.

(‘ode olConduct
Version 1 June 29, 2018



DECLARATION OF OFFICE

(Section 232 of the Municipal Act, 2001)

I, having been elected or appointed to the office

(naive ofperson)

of
(name ofoffice)

in the municipality of
(ilanle ofmunicipality)

do solemnly promise and declare that:

1. 1 will thdy, faitliftully and impartially exemise this office to the best of my knowledge and ability.

2. I have not received and will not receive any payment or reward, or promise thereof, for the

exercise of this office in a biased, corrupt or in any other improper manner.

3. I will disclose any pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in accordance with the Municipal Conflict

of Interest Act.

4. 1 will be faithftil and bear true allegiance to Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth the Second (or the

reigning sovereign for the time being).

And I make this solemn promise and declaration conscientiously believing it to be true and knowing that

it is of the same force and effect as if made under oath.

Declared before me

atthc )

) _____________)

signature of declarant

on )

20 )

Commissioner for taking Affidavits



SECTION 1: INTRODUCTIoN TO THE TOWNSHIP

CODE OF CONDUCT

DATE APPROVED: GEND
DATE LAST REVISED: DECEMBER 2015

DATE IA5T REVIEWED: DECEMBER 2015 -

POLICY:

The Township of Prince establishes a Code of Conduct to define a minimum standard for behaviour of

Council members, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers in carrying out their

functions. All are expected to adhere to standards, policies and procedures, with the primary goal being

to provide the highest possible quality of service to positively reflect the Township.

RATIONALE:

The Values of the Township are demonstrated in how Council members, Committee Appointees,

Municipal Employees and Volunteers interact with others. The Code of Conduct has been developed to

assist to:

i. understand the standards of conduct that are expected of them and the law that applies in

relation to these standards;

2. Fulfill their duty to act honestly and exercise reasonable care and diligence;

3. Act in a way that enhances public confidence in local government;

4. Identify and resolve situations which might involve a conflict of interest or a potential misuse of

position and authority.

This policy also recognizes that it is the responsibility of each individual to uphold the principles and

values described herein.

PROCEDURE:

1. The Code of Conduct has specific definitions as follows:

DEFINITIONS

• “Corporation” means the Corporation of the Township of Prince.

• “Council” means the Council or the Corporation of the Township of Prince.

• “CAO/CAO” refers to the CAO/CAO or successor and shall include designates. This

position is considered a management position.

• “Municipality” means the Corporation of the Township of Prince.

• “Committee Appointees” means any individual appointed by Council to a Board,

Commission or Committee and who may represent Council or the Corporation of the

Township of Prince in the capacity as appointed.

• “Municipal Employees” means all employees either casual, part-time or full-time, hired

and/or appointed by Council for the Corporation of the Township of Prince. These are

considered hourly employees.



• “Salaried Employee” means all full-time non-union employees with regular and
consistent hours of work, regardless of how their compensation is calculated.

• “Volunteer” means any individual approved by Council to act in a volunteer capacity for

the Corporation of the Township of Prince.

2. The Code of Conduct has defined standards as follows:

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

1) Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers shall at

all times seek to advance the common good of the community which they serve.

2) Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers shall

truly, faithfully and impartially exercise their office or position to the best of their
knowledge and ability.

3) Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers shall

refrain from behaviour that could constitute an act of disorder or misbehaviour. Specifically,
Council officials shall refrain from conduct that:

• Contravenes Federal or Provincial statutes or legislation, the Municipal Act, municipal

by-laws, associated regulation and policies, and the Municipality’s Code of Conduct;

• Is an abuse of power or otherwise amounts to discrimination, intimidation, harassment,

verbal abuse, or the adverse treatment of others;

• Prejudices the provision of a service or services to the community.

CONDUCT TO BE OBSERVED

1) Release of Confidential Information

Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers have a
duty to hold in strict confidence all information concerning matters dealt with at in camera

meetings or that is determined to be confidential by the CAO or as specifically declared by
Council. They shall not, either directly or indirectly, release, make public or in any way

divulge any such information or any aspect of this confidential information to anyone,
unless expressly authorized by Council or required by law to do so. Further, Members of
Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers:

• Shall not release information in contravention of the provision of the Municipal

Freedom af Information and Protection of PrivacyAct, R.S.O. 1990, Chapter M.56

• Shall not release information subject to solicitor-client privilege, unless expressly

authorized by Council or required by law to do so

• Shall not misuse confidential information such that it may cause detriment to the

Corporation, Council or others, or benefit or detriment themselves or others

• Shall return upon informal or formal request, to the CAO, confidential or in camera

information or materials.

2) Foster Respect for Decision-Making

All Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers shall
accurately and adequately communicate the attitudes and decisions of the Council, even if

they disagree with Council’s decision, such that respect for the decision-making process of

Council is fostered.



3) Release of Information to the Public and Media

Member5 of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers

acknowledge that official information related to decisions and resolutions made by Council

will normally be communicated to the community and the media by the Council as a whole

or the Mayor as Head of Council or by his or her designate.

4) Acceptance of Gifts

Members of Council, Committee Appointees) Municipal Employees and Volunteers shall

comply with the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act and must not accept a gift or personal

benefit that is connected with their performance of the duties of office or position. This

does not include gifts or personal benefits received as a matter of the protocol or social

obligations that normally accompany the responsibility of office.

5) Engaging in Incompatible Activity

Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers shall not

engage in any activity, financial or otherwise, which is incompatible or inconsistent with the

ethical discharge of official duties in the public interest. Without limiting the generality of

the foregoing, Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and

Volunteers shall not:

• Use any influence of office or position for any purpose other than official duties

• Act as an agent before Council or any committee, board or commission of Council

• Solicit, demand or accept the services of any corporation, employee or individual

providing services to the municipality at a time in which said person or corporation is

being paid by the municipality

• Use any information gained in the execution of office that is not available to the general

public for any purpose other than for official duties

• Place themselves in a position of obligation to any person or organization which might

reasonably benefit from special consideration or may seek preferential treatment

• Give preferential treatment to any person or organization in which a Member of

Council, Committee Appointee, Municipal Employee or Volunteer has a financial interest

• Influence any administrative or Council decision or decision-making process involving or

affecting any person or organization in which a Member of Council, Committee

Appointee, Municipal Employee or Volunteer has a financial interest

• Use corporate materials, equipment, facilities or employees for personal gain or for any

private purpose.

6) Conflict of Interest

It is the responsibility of individual Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal

Employees and Volunteers to ensure that they are aware and trained in the application of

the Municipal Conflict of InterestAct. The onus is on each individual to identify a conflict of

interest, and shall take the appropriate action to identify the existence of a conflict in favour

of his/her public duty.

• A conflict exists when an individual is, or could be, influenced or appear to be influenced

by a personal interest, financial (pecuniary) or otherwise, when carrying out their public



duty. Personal interest can include direct or indirect pecuniary interest, bias, pre

judgement, close mindedness or undue influence.

• Individuals must appropriately resolve any conflict or incompatibility between their

personal interests and the impartial performance of their public or professional duties in

accordance with statutory requirements. When considering whether or not a conflict

exists, it is important to consider whether there are any grounds for a reasonable

person to think that a conflict exists.

Recognizing that it is impossible to anticipate all possible conflicts that may arise, and that

those conflicts may not be only pecuniary in nature, it is generally advisable to be as open as

possible. It is not enough that a conflict not exist, it must also be seen by taxpayers not to

exist.

The following principles should be used as a guide (refer to Municipal Conflict of Interest

Plus, A Handbook by Forbes and Conant):

• In making decision, always place the interests of the taxpayers first and, in particularly,

place them before the interests of colleagues on Council, staff, friends or family

• Always interpret the phrase “conflict of interest” in the broadest possible terms

• A factor which should be considered a conflict by taxpayers should be treated as a

conflict and be disclosed

• If in doubt, it is better to disclose a situation

• It is the responsibility of individual Members of Council, Committee Appointees,

Municipal Employees and Volunteers to obtain independent legal advice with respect to

any situation that might arise whereby there is a potential for a conflict of interest

• It is considered a breach of this policy to require or attempt to burden staff members to

assist in the determination of a conflict of interest for individual Councillors.

7) Avoidance of Waste

Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers shall

avoid waste, abuse and extravagance in the provision or use of public resources, and shall
expose fraud and corruption of which they are aware.

8) Dress Code

The Corporation of the Township of Prince strives to present an approachable and
professional image to its customers. Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal
Employees and Volunteers are expected to dress appropriately and use discretion in
wearing attire that is appropriate for their position or customer interaction. Individuals must
use good judgement and err on the side of caution.

• First and foremost, individuals must be mindful of the Health & Safety Policy. For

example, operators of grass trimmers should not wear short pants.

• Apparel should not be perceived as detracting from the professionalism which Council

and clients expect, nor should it distract other associates or visitors.

• If there is a complaint or comment about an individual’s apparel, the onus will be on the

individual to offer an acceptable explanation as to why the apparel should not be



considered inappropriate and may also be sent home, without pay, to change his/her

attire.

INTERPERSONAL BEHAVIOUR

1) Treat Every Person with Dignity, Understanding and Respect

Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers shall
abide by the provision of the Human Rights Code and, in doing so, shall treat every person,
including other Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and
Volunteers, with dignity, understanding and respect for the right to equality and the right to

an environment that is safe and free from harassment and discrimination.

2) Not to Discriminate

In accordance with the Human Rights Code, Members of Council, Committee Appointees,

Municipal Employees and Volunteers shall not discriminate against anyone on the basis of

their race, ancestry, place of origin, colour, ethnic origin, citizenship, creed, sex, sexual

orientation, age, record of offences, marital status, same-sex partnership status, family
status or disability.

3) Not to Engage in Harassment or Bullying (Psychological Harassment)

In accordance with the Human Rights Code, harassment shall mean engaging in a course of

vexatious comments or conduct that is known or ought reasonably to be known to be

unwelcome. Bullying is the ongoing health- or career-endangering mistreatment of an

employee, by one or more of their peers or superiors. Unlikely to involve physical violence,

it usually takes the form of psychological abuse. Often, verbal and strategic insults are

intended to prevent targets from being successful in theirjob.

Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers shall

refrain from abusive conduct, personal charges, verbal attacks or gossip upon the character

or motives of other individuals or any other type of harassment or bullying.

4) Protection of Privacy

Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers shall

comply with the Municipal Freedom of Informat/on and Protection of Privacy Act at all times.

Public comments, discussions and disclosures to the media regarding employees or

individuals that breach a person’s privacy is deemed to be a contravention of this Code of

Conduct.

ALLEGATIONS, BREACHES AND DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

All Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers shall

abide by the requirements of this Code of Conduct. They themselves have the primary
responsibility to ensure that these ethical standards and codes are understood and met and that
the public can continue to have full confidence in the integrity of the Corporation.

The Head of Council, CAO and chairs of boards and committees have the additional
responsibility to ensure that Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees

and Volunteers are fully aware of and understand the Code of Conduct.



The CAD provides for the enforcement of this policy. Any allegation of breach made under this

policy will be directed to the CAD and he/she will direct the investigation and make

recommendations that are reasonable. However, in the case of an allegation or breach made

against the CAO or Member of Council, Council will be the investigating authority. In

determining appropriate discipline, the CAD and/or Council will have regard to the

responsibilities as well as the severity of any misconduct. Disciplinary action arising from

violations of this Code of Conduct is the responsibility of the CAD and/or Council, depending

upon circumstances, and is subject to relevant collective agreements, employment laws and

standards.

• Where a Member of Council, Committee Appointee, Municipal Employee or Volunteer

makes a complaint of harassment or discriminatory treatment by another such individual,

that member may participate in the resolution or mediation process. lithe member does

not participate in these processes or if the complaint is not resolved through these

processes, the complainant may lodge a complaint to the Ontario Human Rights

Commission

• Any complainant take the following steps, if applicable, to address prohibited activity

by a Member of Council, Committee Appointee, Municipal Employee or Volunteer:

o Provide a written report or letter to their supervisor and the Head of Council

o Contact the DPP with respect to an investigation under s. 122 of the Criminal Code

of Canada, where the allegation is that a Member of Council, in a matter connected

to the duties of office, commits fraud or a breach of trust

o Contact the OPP with respect to an investigation under s. 123 of the Criminal Code

of Canada, where the allegation is that a Member of Council, in a matter connected

to the duties of office, demands, accepts or offers or agrees to accept from any

person a loan, reward, advantage or benefit of any kind

o Advise the Member of Council, Committee Appointee, Municipal Employee or

Volunteer verbally or in writing that the activity contravenes this policy

o Encourage the individual to stop the prohibited activity

o Should keep a written record of the incidents including dates, times, locations, other

persons present, and any other relevant information

o Refer his/her complaint to the Dntario Human Rights Commission where the alleged

misconduct involves a violation of the Human Rights Code

• An Integrity Commissioner, appointed by the municipality able, will play a role in

investigating complaints (formal or informal) about the conduct of Members of Council,

Members of Local Boards (Restricted Definition) and Adjudicative Boards and in determining

whether or not there has been a violation of the Municipality’s Codes of Conduct.

• Similarly, if there is a request for an investigation regarding open meeting requirements or

the procedural by-law relating to any meeting or part of a meeting that was closed to the

public, an investigator, appointed by the Municipality, or the Ombudsman of Ontario has

the authority to investigate the complaint.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT



Members of Council, Committee Appointees, Municipal Employees and Volunteers shall
promote and participate in opportunities for professional development and should stay updated
on issues and trends so that they can be as efficient and effective as possible in the carrying out
of their duties and responsibilities.

IMPLEMENTATION

A Code of Conduct component will be included as part of the orientation workshop for each new
Member of Council, Committee Appointee, Municipal Employee or Volunteer. Individuals are
expected to formally and informally review their adherence to the provisions of the Code on a
regular basis.



Prince
TOWNSHIP

Simply BeautUid, Naturally Prince

AGENDA

r.Cn:

Oste: -It_25fl I

LAW FIRM LLP

Council-Staff Relations
Policy

Council Staff Relations Policy
I’ers,on 1 (June 29, 2018)

Municipality of Prince Township



ImportantDisclaimer:thisprotocol complieswith the relevantprovisionsof the Municijrnl

itt!, 2001, SO OO1, c 15 (the “Act’). If you haveany questionsor concernsaboutthis policy or

how to implementi’ pleasecontact\Vishart Law Firm LLP. WishartLaw Firm LLP is not

responsiblefor the resultsof any edit to this policy other than as expresslyauthorizedor

directedby Wisliart Law Firm LLP.

© 2018, WishartLaw Firm LLP

All rights reserved.No part oftliis work may be reproducedor copied iii any ibrni or by any

means(graphic,electronicor mechanical,including photocopying,recording,tapingor

information and retrieval systems)without the written permissionof Wisliart Law Finn LLP.

A licenceis, however,given by \Vishart Law Firm LLP to any Municipality that haspurchased

a copy of this work to print, copy, save,or post on its official websitefbr its own useonly and

such Municipality may not reptirposeor resell the work in any wa.

Council Stat! RelationsPolicy
Version 1 (June29, 2018)


